Public Document Pack

Children and Young People Committee

Meeting Venue: Cynulliad

Committee Room 1 - Senedd Cenedlaethol
Cymru

Meeting date: National

22 November 2012 Assembly for
Wales

Meeting time: F’
09:15 /

For further information please contact:

Policy: Claire Morris

Committee Clerk

029 2089 8148 / 029 2089 8025
CYPCommittee@wales.gov.uk

Agenda

At the meeting on 14 November the Committee resolved to meet in private for
items 1 and 2 of today's meeting.

1. Introductions, apologies and substitutions

2. Discussion of the Forward Work Programme (09.15 - 10.00)

Break (10.00 - 10.15)
3. Inquiry into CAFCASS (10.15 - 11.00) (Pages 1 - 8)
Association of Directors of Social Services Cymru

Amanda Lewis, Head of Children’s Services, Powys

4. Inquiry into CAFCASS (11.00 - 12.00) (Pages 9 - 16)
Gwenda Thomas, Deputy Minister for Children and Social Services

Gillian Baranski, Chief Executive, CAFCASS Cymru

5. Papers to note



Correspondence from the Deputy Minister for Children and Social Services
regarding CAFCASS Cymru (Pages 17 - 18)



Agenda Iltem 3
ADSS Cymru Response | 2012

ADSS Cymru
Response to

The National Assembly for Wales’
Children and Young People Committee’s

Inquiry into the work of the Children and
Family Court Advisory and Support
Service in Wales (CAFCASS Cymru).

Page 1



ADSS Cymru Response | 2012

Pagez

Introduction

The Association of Directors of Social Services Cymru (ADSS Cymru) is
the acknowledged professional leadership organisation for Social Services in
Wales. It represents the interests of the 21 statutory Directors of Social Services
and the heads of services (adults, children and business) that support them in
delivering Social Services responsibilities and accountabilities, across the twenty-
two Councils in Wales. Its primary purpose is to support social care & health
policy development and formulation, and thus, provide a national voice for the
care and protection of adults and children in vulnerable situations in Wales.

ADSS Cymru welcomes the opportunity to respond on behalf of the local
government family to your inquiry into the work of the Children and Family Court
Advisory and Support Service in Wales (CAFCASS Cymru). We are overall very
positive about the nature of the changes underway in CAFCASS Cymru, and while
it is clearly a journey value the strengthened professional relationship that now
exists between CAFCASS Cymru and Social Services.

ADSS Cymru has a much improved and consistent interface with the operational
services within CAFCASS Cymru across all regions and notes that working
relationships have improved significantly since the CSSIW inspection. Our
engagement at a strategic level with CAFCASS Cymru and critically the CEO has
improved significantly and it is evident that this has had an extremely positive
impact upon the quality and consistency of services delivered to children and
their families.

In developing our response we have consulted with ADSS Cymru members, in
particular the Heads of Children’s Services responsible for the planning and
delivery of services to children and young people. The response submitted
provides a professional social services and social care perspective.

The Committee has informed us that they wish to review

* Progress made in implementing the recommendations of the Care and
Social Services Inspectorate Wales (CSSIW) inspection of November 2010
and the subsequent organisational restructure of CAFCASS Cymru;

= How effectively CAFCASS Cymru is delivering its services in line with the
United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child (UNCRC) for
example user engagement, decision-making in the best interests of the
child;

= How effectively CAFCASS Cymru is delivering its role in the provision of
child contact centres;

= The implications of the Family Justice Review and its effect on the work of
CAFCASS Cymru.

Accordingly, we have responded to the above review questions, in turn.

Page 2




ADSS Cymru Response | 2012

ADSS Cymru Response

1. Progress made in implementing the recommendations of the Care and Social
Services Inspectorate Wales (CSSIW) inspection of November 2010 and the
subsequent organisational restructure of CAFCASS Cymru.

Page3

Our response:

1.1

1.2

1.3

CAFCASS Cymru has made structural changes which have improved
consistency in the delivery of services across Wales which has also
significantly improved the working relationship between CAFCASS and
Local Authorities.

CAFCASS Cymru has demonstrated its commitment driven by its CEO to
renegotiate and strengthen relationships through regular meetings
between the Heads of Service of CAFCASS Cymru and Local Authority
Children’s Services.

In addition, it is generally our experience that there is little or no delay in
the appointment of Guardians in Public Law proceedings cases.

. How effectively CAFCASS Cymru is delivering its services in line with the United

Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child (UNCRC) for example user
engagement, decision-making in the best interests of the child.

Our response:

2.1

2.2

2.3

The 2010 CSSIW Inspection Report judged CAFCASS Cymru as
‘Inadequate’ in the areas of ‘Performance Management’, *User
Engagement’ and ‘Partnerships’ (1). Since then, we believe that CAFCASS
has made significant progress in developing and sharing performance
information with local authorities which is supporting and informing joint
service development and improvement.

Regarding consistent services to children and young people it appears that
a guardian’s actual contact time with children and young people during
the course of the Public law proceedings varies between practitioners.
Local Authority staff report that the majority of CAFCASS Guardians as
‘very good’ in terms of working with LAs and also around the work they do
with children and their parents. We are aware that this was a criticism in
the CSSIW report, and on balance, the CAFCASS officers are usually
experienced with a very sound knowledge base and a comprehensive
understanding of children’s needs. There are now clear mechanisms in
place at an operational and strategic level to address and resolve issues in
a timely and effective manner.

We believe that the CAFCASS Cymru website could be enhanced by
having a dedicated area for children and young people. Although there is
a one page children and young person’s complaints leaflet there appears
to be no key online information designed for children and young people
about the role of CAFCASS Cymru and Guardians. The use of social media
may help support the CSSIW’s recommendation for CAFCASS Cymru to:

“...develop and implement systematic user feedback and evaluation,
including regular feedback from children and young people which
contributes to change 15 8@@“? and policy” (2)



ADSS Cymru Response | 2012

2.4

A valued improvement is the interface between the local authorities and
the CAFCASS Operational Manager. This proactive engagement on the
part of CAFCASS Cymru is very welcome. In addition, the higher level
engagement across Wales led by CAFCASS Cymru’s CEO has also been
very positive and productive.

3. How effectively CAFCASS Cymru is delivering its role in the provision of child
contact centres.

Our response:

3.1

3.2

We are aware that CAFCASS Cymru has introduced an all-Wales approach
to the provision of child contact services in Wales, by appointing the
National Association of Child Contact Centres (NACCC) as the network
manager for Wales. However, we have little information where it operates
child contact centres in Wales.

We are aware that Deputy Minister for Children and Social Services,
Gwenda Thomas AM, recently announced changes to the funding of child
contact services in Wales, in order to ensure consistent, high-quality
provision across the country, (September 2012). However, the CAFCASS
Cymru contact centres are used primarily for private law cases, and even
in private law cases Guardians are often keen to use local authority
contact centres if social services are involved. Local Authorities cannot
provide this service, due to resource limitations, unless they are already
working with the family.

4. Implications of the Family Justice Review and its effect on the work of CAFCASS

Page4

Cymru.
Our response:

4.1

4.2

4.3

It is much too early in the implementation of the Family Justice Review’s
recommendations to assess the impact of the FJ] review. However, the
tripartite forum (comprising CAFCASS Cymru, ADSS Cymru and HM Court
& Tribunal Service) is proactively working together to drive forward the
changes required to support the recommendations set out in the FIR.
There are early signs that changes are taking place in court proceedings
including a greater focus on resolving cases within 26 weeks and a more
proportionate response to appointing expert witnesses.

A combination of high numbers of proceedings and new timescales to
bring cases to conclusion may lead to increased pressure on CAFCASS
Cymru.

In addition, the reduction of the use of experts may result in the nature
and content of the Guardian’s report avoiding a repetition of information
already presented in other documents and a greater concentration on
providing a more analytical, evidence based assessment of the child or
young person’s circumstances, which is welcomed.

END

Page 4




ADSS Cymru Response | 2012

Conclusion

With regard to CAFCASS Cymru there has been a very positive change in
structure, direction, leadership, data sharing, performance management and
partnership and, that this is manifest in our joint development of a joint work
programme to address the issues CSSIW has identified among others of mutual
concern. Our joint priority is planning for the implementation of the FIR and the
local FJ Board and on collectively improving performance as an urgent objective
within that.

ADSS Cymru acknowledges, alongside other key players, that we are at the
beginning of a journey with CAFCASS Cymru. Essential building blocks are now in
place, and as mentioned above, we value the strengthened professional
relationship that now exists between CAFCASS Cymru and Social Services. Our
ultimate goal is to jointly ensure long term positive outcomes for children and
young people in vulnerable situations in Wales.

We look forward to presenting oral evidence to the CYP Committee later this
month.

References:

1. CSSIW Inspection of CAFCASS Cymru, November 2010, p.7
2. Ibid., p.12

Signed:

{:?f\@ew\xe%

Albert Heaney,
Corporate Director of Social Services, Caerphilly County Borough Council,
And President, ADSS Cymru

)\%;gm S ]
Nigel Brown

Assistant Director Social Services

Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council and Caerphilly County Borough Council,
And

Chair, ADSS Cymru All Wales Heads of Children’s Services Group

Date: 9 November 2012

Page 5

Page5




ADSS Cymru Response | 2012

For further information please contact:

ADSS Cymru

Latha Unny, Research & Policy

ADSS Cymru Business Unit

Fairfield House,

C/o Social Care & Housing, Torfaen County Borough Council
Civic Centre, Pontypool

NP4 26YB

Tel: 01633 648574

Email: adss.cymru@torfaen.gov.uk

Leading Social Services

in Wales

Yn arwain

Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol
u yng Nghymru

Ab&s : {MF

A unified professional and strategic leadership voice for social services in Wales
Llais arweinyddiaeth proffesiynol a strategol unedig ar gyfer y gwasanaethau cymdeithasol yng
Nghymru

Page 6

Page6



Page 1

ADSS Cymru Briefing | 2012

Leading Social Services
in Wales
¥Yn arwain
Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol
Ab MFU yng Nghymru
Al

S
ADSS Cymru Briefing to:

The National Assembly for Wales’ Children and Young People
Committee’s

Inquiry into the work of the Children and Family Court
Advisory and Support Service in Wales (CAFCASS Cymru).

ADSS Cymru welcomes the opportunity to respond on behalf of the local
government family to your inquiry into the work of the Children and
Family Court Advisory and Support Service in Wales (CAFCASS Cymru).

The Association of Directors of Social Services Cymru (ADSS Cymru) is
the acknowledged professional leadership organisation for Social Services in
Wales. It represents the interests of the 21 statutory Directors of Social Services
and the heads of services (adults, children and business) that support them in
delivering Social Services responsibilities and accountabilities, across the twenty-
two Councils in Wales. Its primary purpose is to support social care & health
policy development and formulation, and thus, provide a national voice for the
care and protection of adults and children in vulnerable situations in Wales.

Key Points with respect to the Inquiry’s questions are as follows:

1. Since the 2010 CSSIW Inspection Report there has been a very positive
change in CAFCASS Cymru’s structure, direction, leadership, data sharing,
performance management and partnership resulting in and that this is
manifest in our joint development of a joint work programme to address
the issues.

2. Driven by its CEO, CAFCASS Cymru has demonstrated its commitment to
renegotiate and strengthen relationships through regular meetings
between the Heads of Service of CAFCASS Cymru and Local Authority
Children’s Services.

3. Local Authorities generally noted that a guardian’s actual contact time
with children and young people during the course of the Public law
proceedings varies between practitioners. The majority of guardians are
perceived as ‘very good’ in terms of working with LAs and also around the
work they do with children and their parents.

4. There are now clear mechanisms in place at an operational and strategic
level to address and rel50Ive iss.?es in a timely and effective manner.
age




Signed:

W@W

Albert Heaney,

ADSS Cymru Briefing | 2012

Although we are aware that CAFCASS Cymru has introduced an all-Wales
approach to the provision of child contact services in Wales we have little
information where it operates child contact centres in Wales. Authorities
report that guardians tend to use Local Authority contact centres if Social
Services are involved.

It is much too early in the implementation of the Family Justice Review’s
recommendations to assess the impact of the FJ] review. However, the
tripartite forum (comprising CAFCASS Cymru, ADSS Cymru and HM Court
& Justice Tribunal) is proactively working together to drive forward the
changes required to support the recommendations set out in the FIR.

CAFCASS Cymru could potentially utilise New Media as a tool to
communicate more effectively and directly with children and young
people.

It is, however, important to state that in some of the areas of the Inquiry,
we do not have a singular or coherent view, and at best are relying on
anecdote. For example, we are unaware of any specific discussion about
revising the complaints procedures. More solid evidence of progress or of
patterns of behaviour and practice may be forthcoming by further
investigation.

Corporate Director of Social Services, Caerphilly County Borough Council,
And President, ADSS Cymru

Nigel Brown

)\Q@me ~

Assistant Director Social Services
Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council and Caerphilly County Borough Council,

And

Chair, ADSS Cymru All Wales Heads of Children’s Services Group

Date: 12 November 2012

Page2

For further information please contact:

ADSS Cymru

Latha Unny, Research & Policy

ADSS Cymru Business Unit

Fairfield House,

C/o Social Care & Housing, Torfaen County Borough Council
Civic Centre, Pontypool

Tel: 01633 648574 Email: adss.cymru@torfapagék8




Agenda ltem 4

Children and Young People Committee

Date: 22 November 2012

Venue: Senedd, National Assembly for Wales

Title: Inquiry into the work of the Children and Family Court Advisory and Support
Service in Wales (CAFCASS Cymru)

Purpose

1. This paper provides CAFCASS Cymru’s evidence to the National Assembly for
Wales Children and Young People Committee’s inquiry into the work of the
organisation. The evidence is focussed on the areas identified for scrutiny by the
Committee as part of its inquiry.

Introduction: Overview of progress and achievements

2. CAFCASS Cymru plays a vital role in supporting children and families involved in
family court proceedings. It advises the courts on the best course of action based
on an assessment of the best interests of individual children. Its purpose is to
safeguard the child and ensure their voice is heard within the family justice system.

3. The child’s future welfare is at the heart of every action taken by CAFCASS Cymru.

4. In response to the Care and Social Services Inspectorate Wales (CSSIW) report
published in November 2010 CAFCASS Cymru began an ambitious change
programme. Highlights have included:

¢ An organisational restructuring creating a regional structure co-terminus with
the Local Health Board model, described by a Prospect representative at a
meeting of the Department of Health, Social Services and Children Partnership
Forum in September 2011 as an exemplar reorganisation within Welsh
Government.

e The restructure enabled the release of resources to support front line service
delivery.

¢ Significantly reducing the backlog of cases for allocation despite receiving the
highest number of care referrals in the organisation’s history.

e Developing strategic relationships with Local Authorities, the Judiciary and Her
Majesty’s Courts and Tribunals Service (HMCTS).

e The launch in January 2012 of CAFCASS Cymru’s Strategic Plan 2012 —-15
following consultation with children and young people on its’ development.

e The children’s version of the Strategic Plan.

e Consultation with children and young people on the development of Children’s
Information packs which provide information to children about CAFCASS
Cymru and the services provided in an age appropriate format. These packs
were launched on 12" November 2012.

¢ Introduction of a new Complaints process aligned to the First Minister’s
guidance on the management of complaints by Public Services.

e Undertaking a comprehensive LEAN review of administration processes across
the organisation to ensure improved consistency and efficiency.

Page 9
-1-



e Undertaking a review of child contact services across Wales, implementing a
strategy for improved provision, more equitable funding arrangements and
improved management of the All-Wales network of service provision from April

2013.

e Developing and improving the capability to manage work electronically,
including the implementation of a scanning solution which integrates with the
electronic case management system and the WG electronic records

management system.

Areas to be reviewed by the Committee

Progress made in implementing the recommendations of the Care and Social
Services Inspectorate Wales (CSSIW) inspection of November 2010 and the
subsequent organisational restructure of CAFCASS Cymru

Inspection recommendations

5. The Care and Social Services Inspectorate \Wales (CSSIW) undertook an
extensive inspection of CAFCASS Cymru in 2010. Following an overall
satisfactory rating, action plans and work programmes were developed to address
the eight recommendations made by the inspection team:

Ref | Recommendation Status

A | Review the overall structure of the Complete. New organisational structure
organisation to ensure effective leadership, | in place October 2011.
management oversight and accountability
of the service.
B | Develop and implement systematic children | Work in progress as part of the
and young people users feedback and organisation’s participation agenda
evaluation which contributes to change in (please see response at paragraphs
practice and policy. 15-27).
C | Develop and implement systematic adult Complete. Adult service user
user feedback and evaluation which qguestionnaires are sent routinely to all
contribute to change in practice and policy. | service users as part of the
organisational welcome pack.
Evaluation of feedback undertaken
quarterly by the organisation’s Senior
Management Team and actions
identified where relevant.
D | Conduct a complete review of the Review complete and new process
complaints processes, procedures and introduced. Work now being
practice and improve complaints handling undertaken to fully embed the new
across the organisation. process effectively.
E | Improve services to children with Work in progress. Included as part of

disabilities.

the organisation’s participation agenda
(please see response at paragraphs
15-27).

Page 10




Ref | Recommendation Status
F | Develop and implement effective Work in Progress. Robust performance
performance management and quality management processes in place with
assurance frameworks. information routinely shared with
HMCTS and Heads of Children’s
Services to collaboratively improve
performance. Improved auditing
mechanisms being developed and
implemented.
G | Review of Case Planning, Recording and Work in progress. A bespoke directory
Assessment Framework. of assessment tools is currently being
developed which are aimed at
supporting and strengthening
assessment practice and improving
quality and consistency in decision
making, recommendations and analysis.
The tools will be launched in 2013
supported by focussed training sessions
for practitioners.
H | Domestic Violence Toolkit to be reviewed. | Complete.

6. In their letter to the Chief Executive dated January 2012, CSSIW were encouraged
to see the progress made in implementing their recommendations, and indicated
that no further actions would need to be taken until their next inspection in 2013.

7. The Senior Management Team continues to rigorously drive forward the Inspection
recommendations, which have now been incorporated within the organisation’s
Strategic Plan. This is monitored on a quarterly basis.

8. In anticipation of the requirements of the major reforms to the family justice system
in response to the Family Justice Review (FJR), an Operating Framework is being
developed. This will set out clear practice expectations and guidance to Family
Court Advisors to ensure that all children referred to the organisation receive a
consistent and quality based service. It is anticipated that this will be launched by
April 2013.

9. A Domestic Abuse Toolkit has been developed which pulls together a number of

electronic resources to support Family Court Advisers in ensuring that risks are
identified at an early stage, and in making informed decisions and
recommendations to the Court. CAFCASS Cymru’s intranet site has also been
revised to improve the accessibility of Domestic Abuse related documents for front
line practitioners.

Page 11




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Organisational restructuring

Following the appointment of a new Chief Executive in November 2010 an
immediate review of CAFCASS Cymru’s structure was initiated. Staff were
consulted throughout, and kept informed of progress regularly. To minimise staff
uncertainty consultation was completed by March 2011 and the new structure
agreed and implemented.

Operational delivery areas have been reconfigured on the Local Health Board
model with a reduction from 10 to 5 teams operating from 15 office locations.

The Senior Management Team was reduced by 50% and undertook a leadership
programme targeted at strengthening the strategic leadership capacity and
capability of the organisation.

The 3 central teams were reduced to one.

A centralised Private Law Work to First Hearing team has been established to
improve consistency in service provision.

The organisation has established a new Practice Manager role to improve the
support provided to front line practitioners.

Underpinning the structural changes was the development of a robust performance
management information analysis system.

How effectively CAFCASS Cymru is delivering its services in line with the United
Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child (UNCRC) for example user
engagement, decision-making in the best interests of the child

17.

18.

19.

The implementation of the Rights of the Children and Young Persons Wales
Measure is in two phases. The second phase, which comes into effect from 1 May
2014, will require Welsh Ministers to have due regard to the articles of the UNCRC
in the exercise of all of their functions, including the functions of CAFCASS Cymru.
This means that when Family Court Advisors carry out their duties in family
proceedings, they in turn will need to have due regard to the articles of the
UNCRC. Currently, the Court report will reflect the fact that the welfare of the child
will be the court’s paramount consideration in line with the Children Act 1989.

The CAFCASS Cymru Senior Management Team made a decision to make
completion of the Welsh Government UNCRC training mandatory for all staff.
Completion rates have been closely monitored to ensure full compliance with this
requirement.

To visibly demonstrate the organisation’s commitment to effective engagement with
children , the Senior Management Team has received bespoke training on
children’s participation and how this could be developed and improved on an
organisation wide basis.

Page 12



20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

This has been supplemented by the delivery of a series of regional training events
for the organisation’s staff facilitated by Participation Wales aimed at raising
awareness of the importance of participation and engagement in the work of
CAFCASS Cymru.

During the summer of 2011 Child Participation events were held across Wales to
consult on a children’s version of the new Strategic Plan. These events also
provided an opportunity to consult on the development and content of Children’s
Information Packs, which provide information to children and young people about
CAFCASS Cymru’s services in an age appropriate format.

Work is continuing on children’s participation through the development and review
of a participation plan and service user engagement.

Concerted efforts have been made this year to recruit a Participation Manager
tasked with the responsibility of delivering the organisation’s Participation plan.
Thus far, these efforts have been unsuccessful. The organisation is therefore
following the Welsh Government specification and tender process with a view to
appointing an external participation provider to assist with taking the participation
agenda forward.

As part of the organisation’s bespoke complaints process for children, child
advocacy arrangements have been agreed with Tros Gynnal Plant and National
Youth Advocacy Service (NYAS) to ensure provision of and access to advocacy
support where necessary for children wishing to make a complaint.

Information leaflets for children wishing to make a complaint are included in the
Children’s Information pack. We welcome the offer by the Children’s
Commissioner to share his office’s complaints leaflet for children and providing the
organisation with the opportunity to adopt and adapt this.

A child friendly information pack has been developed in consultation with children
and young people, stakeholders and staff and is due for introduction in November
2012.

Improving our services to children with disabilities is part of the organisation’s
participation agenda. A CAFCASS Cymru directory of practitioner experience and
skills in working with children with disabilities is currently being developed, and will
act as a resource for practitioners to support effective work in this area.

The Child & Adolescent Welfare Checklist is an assessment resource that has
been developed by Professor Gordon Harold, Child Psychologist, together with
CAFCASS Cymru. It places children's responses and experiences centre-stage of
the assessment process in the context of exposure to inter-parental conflict and/or
domestic abuse.

One of the strengths of the organisation is that we constantly strive to ensure that
the voice of the child is heard within Family Proceedings, as evidenced by the
response of the Family Courts Committee of the Magistrates’ Associations.

Page 13
-5-



30. We welcome the suggestion by the Association of Directors of Social Services
Cymru (ADSS Cymru) that our website should be enhanced by having a dedicated
area for children and young people and that our use of social media should be
reviewed. We will work with colleagues within Welsh Government to take forward
these helpful suggestions.

How effectively CAFCASS Cymru is delivering its role in the provision of child
contact centres

31.  In 2011 CAFCASS Cymru undertook a comprehensive review of Child Contact
Services across Wales. The review revealed that provision was inconsistent and
patchy, funding was inequitable and the network for contact service providers was
not being effectively managed. Following the review CAFCASS Cymru outlined its
plans to the Deputy Minister for the future provision, funding and support
arrangements for Child Contact Services in Wales.

32. These plans attempt to address the issues identified in the review, and will be fully
realised from April 2013. To date, significant progress has been made in
implementing the plans in partnership with existing providers.

33.  Transitional arrangements are in place for 2012-13 and funding has been targeted
to priority areas across Wales. As a result, an additional 4 Child Contact Centres
have been funded on a 12 month basis in Abergavenny, Neath Port Talbot, Ebbw
Vale and Pontllanfraith.

34. These plans involve the commissioning of contact service provision on a regional
basis in line with the principles outlined in Welsh Government’s framework for
Sustainable Social Services for Wales, and are consistent with the Local Health
Board model and the operational configuration of CAFCASS Cymru.

35. Inorder to bring about improved quality assurance and consistency across Wales,
a key development has been the appointment of an independent Network Manager
with recognised skills to manage the All-Wales network of Child Contact Service
providers on behalf of Welsh Government.

36. Following a procurement exercise, CAFCASS Cymru, assisted by teams
specialising in Grants Excellence, Legal Services and Procurement, appointed the
National Association of Child Contact Centres (NACCC) as the Network Manager
for the All-Wales network of Child Contact Service providers in August 2012.

37. A grants awards process has recently been initiated with respect to the provision of
contact service provision from April 2013. Providers will be submitting grant
applications by December 2012, from which decisions and recommendations will
be made taking into account levels of demand. Successful bidders will receive
indicative funding for 3 years.

Page 14



The implications of the Family Justice Review and its effect on the work of
CAFCASS Cymru

38.

39.

40.

41.

CAFCASS Cymru welcomes the major reforms to the family justice system being
taken forward in response to the Family Justice Review (FJR) and the opportunities
this brings to improve services and outcomes for children and families in Wales.

A new Family Justice Board for England and Wales has been established to
provide greater leadership and co-ordination across the system. Membership from
Wales consists of representation from the Welsh Government, the Association of
Directors of Social Services (ADSS) Cymru, and CAFCASS Cymru.

To complement and support the work of the Board, the Deputy Minister for Children
and Social Services announced the creation of a new Family Justice Network to
bring together core agencies in the family justice system in Wales, including
CAFCASS Cymru, to work together and unlock barriers for the purpose of
improving performance in Wales.

CAFCASS Cymru recognises that effective relationships with partners and
stakeholders are essential for service delivery and improvement. During 2011-12
the organisation has strengthened relationships at national, regional and local
levels, including:

a. The Chief Executive of CAFCASS Cymru has regular engagement with Mr
Justice Moor, Family Division Liaison Judge for Wales and senior officials
from HM Courts and Tribunals Service (HMCTS).

b. CAFCASS Cymru recognised it needed to develop a more effective
relationship with ADSS Cymru in particular, and greatly appreciates the
constructive discussions and engagement which now takes place regularly
both nationally and locally.

c. Since February 2012, CAFCASS Cymru has hosted trilateral meetings with
the All Wales Heads of Children’s Services and HMCTS to identify the
challenges of the reform programme and to work together to improve the
services provided to children, families and the Courts. This subsequently
became a sub-group of the Family Justice Network.

d. In March and April 2012, CAFCASS Cymru facilitated two joint conferences
which included representatives from HMCTS Wales staff and family legal
advisers; CAFCASS Cymru practitioners, administrators and managers; family
judiciary and panel magistrates together with Local Authority solicitors. The
aims of the workshops were to develop closer working arrangements between
all the relevant statutory family justice agencies within Wales, to reduce
delays within family proceedings, contribute to ensuring better outcomes for
children and focussing services around the needs of the child.

e. CAFCASS Cymru appreciates the support provided by its’ Advisory
Committee chaired by Ms Catriona Williams. This Committee enables regular
engagement with Third Sector organisations and has enabled CAFCASS
Cymru’s change programmes to be scrutinised by a wide range of stakeholder
organisations.

Page 15



42.

43.

44,

45.

CAFCASS Cymru has taken a leadership role in the delivery of the reforms to the
family justice system in Wales. In particular, CAFCASS Cymru regularly shares its
core data with partners in Local Authorities and the Courts. This has resulted in
discussion and research about the variation in referral rates between Local
Authorities, the use of experts in cases and the variation in completion rates in
Courts across Wales.

A key recommendation of the Family Justice Review is to reduce the length of time
for completion of a public law case within the Court. Currently, the average for
Wales is 55.4 weeks; the target is 26 weeks. CAFCASS Cymru is currently
reviewing its working practices to ensure we are able to meet the requirements of
the 26 week pathway for public law cases when it is implemented in 2014.

CAFCASS Cymru is also a member of the FJB’s Performance and Improvement
Sub Group which is responsible for analysing the available performance
information and galvanising action to improve performance at the national and local
levels in Wales and England, supporting the role of newly established Local Family
Justice Boards.

Once further clarity regarding legislation and judicial expectations is published,
CAFCASS Cymru has agreed to facilitate a series of joint workshops between
Local Authorities, HMCTS and CAFCASS Cymru staff in early Spring 2013.

CAFCASS Cymru: the next stage

46.

47.

48.

CAFCASS Cymru recognises that though it has made significant progress with its’
change programme, work remains ongoing.

CAFCASS Cymru values the relationships it has developed with ADSS Cymru and
the Heads of Children’s Services across Wales ; the Judiciary and HMCTS and
wider stakeholders through it's Advisory Committee. CAFCASS Cymru further
appreciates that the necessary changes cannot happen in isolation and is working
closely with our partners to develop common agreements on the post reform
system.

CAFCASS Cymru is determined to fully deliver the aspirational plans set out in it's
strategic plan.

Page 16



Agenda ltem 5a

Gwenda Thomas AC / AM / ( f(?

Y Dirprwy Weinidog Plant a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol
Deputy Minister for Children and Social Services “";})

Liywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Ein cyf/Our ref ;: S+ /GT/2466/12

Christine Chapman AM

Chair

Children and Young People Committee

National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff A, October 2012
CF99 1NA

:’fEMJ’ Yt 3

Thank you for copying me in to your letter regarding the forthcoming enquiry by the Children
and Young People Committee into the work of CAFCASS Cymru. | welcome this enquiry,
and thought it might help aid your initial considerations to be aware of some of the changes
which have taken place within CAFCASS Cymru over the last two years.

In November 2010, the Care and Social Services Inspectorate Wales (CSSIW) published its
report following a full inspection of CAFCASS Cymru. The organisation received a
satisfactory rating overall. However, the CSSIW recommended that the leadership
capability of the organisation required strengthening and improving, and the then newly
appointed Chief Executive undertook an immediate review of CAFCASS Cymru’s structure.
Operational delivery areas have been reconfigured on the local Health Board model, and a
new Senior Management Team has been established. Staff were consulted throughout,
and kept informed of progress regularly. The whole process of restructuring was completed
quickly in order to bring certainty to the organisation’s staff.

Significant progress has also been achieved in relation to the provision of Contact Services.
The organisation has undertaken a review of contact services across Wales, and an
Independent Contract Manager has been identified to manage and support the all Wales
network of Child Contact Centres on behalf of the Welsh Government.

CAFCASS Cymru has developed a three year Strategic Plan, which | launched at Y Senedd
in January 2012. This is an ambitious plan, with a very clear focus on achieving the
changes required to continuously improve services and meet the challenges faced by the
Family Justice system in Wales. | was particularly pleased to see a children’s version of this
plan, which was developed following a series of child participation events held across
Wales. These events also contributed to the development of a Children’s Information Pack,
which provides information about services provided in an age appropriate format to children
involved with CAFCASS Cymru. | understand that this pack will be launched at the
beginning of November.

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd » Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Gwenda. Thomas@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi'i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (Iﬁﬂ"é)g e 17 Printed on 100% recycled paper



| am also pleased to see the leadership role CAFCASS Cymru has taken to help drive
forward the Family Justice Modernisation Programme. In particular, | am aware of the very
constructive working relationship which has been developed with the Local Authority Heads
of Children’s Services across Wales and the important role that CAFCASS Cymru is playing
at an England and Wales level through their engagement with the Family Justice Board and
implementation of the Family Justice Review.

Finally, | am sure the committee will appreciate sight of the CAFCASS Cymru Strategic Plan
2012 — 15, the children’s version of this plan as well as a copy of the organisation’s Annual
Report for 2011-12, which | have recently approved. | attach a link to the CAFCASS Cymru
website page that contains these documents.

http://wales.gov.uk/cafcasscymru/home/publications/?lang=en

| understand that the timescales for your review are short and | look forward to seeing your
recommendations in due course.

%ymm«w//f

werds. .

Gwenda Thomas AC / AM
Y Dirprwy Weinidog Plant a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol
Deputy Minister for Children and Social Services

Page 18



	Agenda
	3 Inquiry into CAFCASS
	CYP(4)-32-12 Paper 1a - ADSS briefing paper

	4 Inquiry into CAFCASS
	5a Correspondence from the Deputy Minister for Children and Social Services regarding CAFCASS Cymru

